
Monon Town and Township Public Library  
Board of Trustees  

Meeting Agenda // August 8, 2022, 4PM EST 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Approval of July 11 Board Meeting Minutes  
3. Claims/Payroll for July 2022/Treasurer’s Report 
4. Librarian’s Report 

 
 

5. Personnel Report  
a. None  

 
6. Old Business  

a. 2023 Budget  
 
 
 

7. New Business 
a. E-Rate Funding 2023-2024  
b. Public Forum Policy  

 
 
 
 
 
 

8. Adjournment 
The next meeting is Monday, September 12, 2022 at 4PM. This is also the public hearing for the 2023 
budget.  



Monon Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees Meeting
Monday, July 11, 2022, 4PM

Present: Austin Stroud, Michele Buswell, Clark Raver, Julie Hart, Rosemary Cooley
Absent: Lexi Reagan, Desi Kyle, Jennifer Annis
Call to Order: Called to order by Clark Raver at 4PM.

Minutes - Rosemary Cooley made a motion to approve the June 13 meeting minutes
and Michele Buswell seconded. All were in favor, and the motion passed.

Finances/Treasurer’s Report - Austin shared that we are running high in employee
benefits, which was expected, since we didn’t know the health insurance costs when the
2022 budget was made. We have overage money coming out of LIRF to use for that,
and should be able to move money around at the end of the year just fine. Julie Hart
made the motion to accept the financial reports and sign the claim register. Rosemary
Cooley seconded the motion. All were in favor. The motion passed.

Librarian’s report -Austin shared that we received the Heritage Support Grant from the
Indiana Historical Society (as part of the Monon Civic Preservation Society), so we will
soon be adding a microfilm reader and getting newspapers microfilmed. The staff has
been busy scanning board meeting minutes, too, so we are almost ready to have all of
those microfilmed as required by the state.

We have a lot of old tech things that Austin would like to dispose of.  You will see some
information from a tech recycling company in Indianapolis that will pick up what we
gather for free. This would be old computers that need to be safely disposed of, as well
as any surplus things we have that aren’t valued enough to be considered fixed assets
(cables, printers, some old monitors – we will hang onto some).  Most of the things are
free (a few things you’ll see listed that have a fee), and we just have to notify them when
to pick it up. The board wants Austin to see if the company would be willing to bring a
big truck and we can then open it up to the town to return things. Julie Hart made a
motion to proceed with the tech cleanup and recycling, and Michele Buswell seconded.
All present were in favor, and the motion passed.

The new public computers and hotspots are out and in order. We still need to replace
the downstairs computers with what was removed from upstairs.

The tile is cracking and coming up in a few places in the lobby and entryway. Caulking
can help temporarily, but it’s not a problem that can be fixed without redoing the floor
completely. Austin asked the same company that did the library carpet a few years ago



for a quote.  They quoted us for both retiling it with ceramic tile as well as just putting
down carpet tiles. Austin also asked about the possibility of using the same carpet we
have now. You will see those quotes after this report. Austin recommends eventually
carpeting it since it’s the most affordable solution. We may need to wait on this until
closer to the end of the year. We are also hoping to get work completed on the front
entrance before the end of the year. We have about $46k left we can spend out of Rainy
Day in 2022, and about $30k out of LIRF. Some of that LIRF money will go to pay for
overages on employee benefits as well as the matching portion of the Heritage Support
Grant ($2600). If we proceed now, Austin recommends taking it out of the Rainy Day
fund.This still will leave us with enough to do work on the front entrance if that makes it
onto the 2022 budget. Julie Hart made a motion to pay up to $5k for the carpeting of the
lobby and entryway out of the Rainy Day fund, paying the deposit and installation, and
Rosemary Cooley seconded. All present were in favor, and the motion passed.

We have had 21 adults participate in the adult summer reading program so far, which
ends this week. Barbara also is wrapping up summer reading later this week.  We’ll
have a fuller report on all things summer next month.

Johnson Controls completed work in installing the fire alarm panel. They said that if the
cell network doesn’t work well (it connects via Verizon towers), we may eventually need
an IT company to run cabling so it is directly wired into our network and not operating on
the wireless. That is beyond the capabilities of the work they can do for us.

Marissa received some training from the White County Literacy group this past week,
and they now will give her materials that she can use for ESL classes as well as give
those in attendance. She plans to attend the literacy group’s next board meeting today
(and Austin plans to attend the August meeting).

A lot of libraries are creating public comment policies due to more people complaining
about libraries carrying certain books or items. To be proactive with this, before we have
challenges on our collection, Austin will work on a draft policy from looking at other
library policies for the August board meeting.

Austin shared information about special Evergreen Indiana pricing to add Gale courses.
However, he isn’t sure that we would have enough patrons use it to make it worthwhile.
The board decided not to opt into this.

The board also discussed the logistics of an outside shed to store the book bike and
contacting the building trades teacher at North White.  There also was discussion about



reaching out to Hannah Young for landscaping around the library (although late for this
year).

Personnel Report -
Austin mentioned that with Grace going back to school in a month, that we will be
looking for another student worker during the school year.  We already have had one
resume turned in as a starting point.

Old Business - None
New Business - Austin shared the first draft of the 2023 budget. He meets with our
DLGF rep on Wednesday morning to get the budgeting process started. We will still be
able to move money around through the August 8 board meeting, but this gives us a
starting point.  A few things Austin wanted to note for consideration:  The growth
quotient for the 2023 budget is 5%, so Austin recommends moving the custodian pay
from $300/month or $150 twice/month to $315/month or $157.50 twice/month. This will
absorb the full 5%.  Similarly, since the staff all just received a 3% increase in June,
Austin would like to try to get another 2% in for January 1 so the staff receives the full
5% increase. This is dependent on what happens with our 2023 health insurance rates,
which will be known in November 2022. If that doesn’t increase significantly, we can
proceed with the additional 2% at that time.  Austin increased the employee benefits to
compensate for being short in that fund this year, and he also increased the other
services and charges fund and the non-print fund. The non-print fund increase would
allow us to add more items to our library of things and explore further non-traditional
items for our collection.  We are required to spend 8% of our budget on our collection.

Julie Hart made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5PM and Rosemary Cooley
seconded.  All present were in favor, and the motion passed.  The next meeting:
Monday, August 8, at 4PM.

_______________________ _______________________
Clark Raver, President Rosemary Cooley, Secretary































Librarian’s Report – August 8, 2022 
We ordered the microfilm reader for the Heritage Support Grant. It should be here later this month.  We 
purchased a desk to sit it on since none of ours were wide or deep enough to hold it.  Jennifer Annis is 
taking the newspapers to Indianapolis on Tuesday, August 9, to be microfilmed.  

We likely will move forward with just recycling our tech things later this month since the logistics of 
opening it up to everyone seems like a nightmare.   

We’re still waiting on the tiling to be replaced with carpet, but the work should start soon.  They plan to 
work mainly in the evening to limit interruptions to staff and patrons.  

The strip of land between us and the gas station has been cleaned up a bit.  More work is to come on 
that.  

We continue to have some issues with the front of the building.  The electricity wasn’t working after a 
big rain a few weeks ago, so we’ve temporarily shut that electricity off. Harry Mohler is still following up 
with folks to work on that part of the building.   

We had 22 adults participate in the summer reading program.  

The public comment policy Austin touched on last month is on the agenda.  Austin edited this draft from 
another library in Indiana.  

We were contacted by PERF that we will be having an employer audit in the next few weeks.  This one 
should only take a few hours and focus on our payroll/retirement and nothing else.   

See the attached report on the next page from Barbara for the summer.  

 



Summer Reading 2022 
Oceans of Possibilities 

 

 

 

It was great having Summer Reading in person again this year!  A total of 6 children participated in the 
Preschool Summer Reading group.  Books were read about oceans, rivers and lakes.  Rhymes and songs 
were enjoyed, plus crafts about fish and octopus kept everyone entertained. Each week prizes were 
given to children who had 5 picture books read to them. 

Summer Reading K-5 grades learned about the Mariana Trench and the Aurora Borealis. They also did 
experiments about how blubber keeps animals warm and how water surface tension works on a penny. 
These were just a few of the things that this group of around 15 youth did during their 6 weeks at the 
library.  The Preschoolers and the K-5 Summer Reading groups were treated to ice cream cake their last 
day. They also made their very own stuffed animal from, “Noah’s Ark Workshop.” Prizes were given each 
week to any child who read 5 picture books or 1 chapter book.  

Beyond Summer Reading had a total of 6 youth attend during their 5 weeks. This all boy group was 
great! They were attentive, talkative and engaged in the activities, experiments and the book discussion 
on, “Wild River” by Rodman Philbrick. Prizes were given to all who read the book and additional prizes 
were given for each additional book read.  There was an exciting game of Jeopardy with categories 
about oceans, marine life as well as Indiana facts. This group finished with a pizza party and they all 
made a stuffed animal from, “Noah’s Ark Workshop.” 

 

What made this Summer Reading even more amazing is that three Summer School classes from North 
White visited the library for their very own Summer Reading program! Each class visited twice.  The 
three classes, Pre-Kindergarten, First grade and Fifth grade, were treated to a slightly abbreviated 
Summer Reading program. This was wonderful! The students, teachers and I all had a fantastic time. The 
Pre-Kindergarteners and First graders loved our parachute and the Fifth grade class really liked an 
activity provided by the U.S. Coast Guard on what were the most important items to have if lost at sea. 

 

 The total number of youth in attendance during the Summer Reading program was 143. The total 
number of adults in attendance was 64. 

  



Collection Area July 2022 Circulation July 2021 Circulation July 2020 Circulation

Adult Fiction 248 195 181

Adult Non-Fiction 64 58 52

Adult/Juvenile DVDs/Videos 179 138 112

Adult/Juvenile Audiobooks 3 5 5

Magazines 65 24 84

Juvenile Fiction 161 139 69

Juvenile Non-Fiction 5 15 12

Young Adult/Teen 32 23 12

Video Games 10 1 0

Hoopla 36 21 0

Overdrive (ebooks/e-audio) 182 234 210

Hotspots 33 8 0

Library of Things 8 0 0

Total Circulation (# of checkouts) 1026 861 737



Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 1

Fund Department Category Sub-Category Line Item Code Line Item Published Adopted

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $25,000 $25,000

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Machinery, Equipment, 
and Vehicles

Furniture & Equipment $21,749 $21,749

0061 - RAINY DAY NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

0061 - RAINY DAY Total $46,749 $46,749

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Assistants $115,000 $115,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Custodian $7,500 $7,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Salaries and Wages Salary of Librarian $52,000 $52,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Employee Benefits Employee Benefits $64,000 $64,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES Operating Supplies Cleaning and Sanitation Supplies $2,750 $2,750

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES Other Supplies Library Supplies $6,250 $6,250

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Professional Services eBook Services & Hoopla $6,000 $6,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Professional Services Professional Services $2,000 $2,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Communication and 
Transportation

Communication & Transportation $12,300 $12,300

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Printing and Advertising Printing & Advertising $500 $500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Insurance Library Insurance $8,400 $8,400

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Utility Services Utility Services $22,000 $22,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $20,000 $20,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Rentals Rentals $100 $100

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Dues, Interest, & Taxes $1,250 $1,250

Budget Form 1 - Budget Estimate
Year:  2023   County:  White    Unit:   Monon Public Library

Page 17/13/2022 8:47:27 AM



Prescribed by the Department of Local Government Finance           
Approved by the State Board of Accounts

       Budget Form No. 1

Fund Department Category Sub-Category Line Item Code Line Item Published Adopted

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Other Services & Charges $18,000 $18,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Other Services and 
Charges

Transfer to LIRF $5,000 $5,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Machinery, Equipment, 
and Vehicles

Furniture/Equipment $15,000 $15,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Other Capital Outlays Periodicals and Newspapers $3,500 $3,500

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Books and Other Media Books $23,000 $23,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT CAPITAL OUTLAYS Books and Other Media Nonprint material $12,000 $12,000

0101 - GENERAL          
                       

NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

0101 - GENERAL Total $396,550 $396,550

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT PERSONAL 
SERVICES

Employee Benefits Employee Benefits $8,239 $8,239

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT SERVICES AND 
CHARGES

Repairs and Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $25,000 $25,000

2011 - LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT 
RESERVE             

NO DEPARTMENT PROPERTY TAX CAP Property Tax Cap Impact Property Tax Cap Impact $0 $0

2011 - LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT RESERVE Total $33,239 $33,239

UNIT TOTAL $476,538 $476,538

Page 27/13/2022 8:47:27 AM



Revised 6/29/2022 

Timeline for Your E-Rate Year 26 

(July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024) 

 

10/21/2022  Board Resolution to Join the Indiana State Library Consortium for 
Public Library Internet Access—Signed document must be received 
in ISL by this date 

  Form 479 (CIPA compliance)—Signed document must be received 
in ISL by this date 

  Letter of Agency—Signed document must be received in ISL by this 
date 

11/30/2022  Deadline for the AdTec Data Sheet (including budget pages) for 
current Consortium members. Individual emails with attachment to 
current Consortium members will be sent out by AdTec in 
September. Submit completed document to AdTec offices and not to 
Indiana State Library. 

1/31/2023   Service Level Checklist Form—Document is handled on or before 
this date by E-rate service provider  

   

12/2022-
2/2023 

 Target window for Form 471 (Description of Services Ordered and 
Certification Form)—The exact dates are announced by USAC by 
the New Year. 

   

7/01/2023  Service year begins 

   

7/2023-
10/2023 

 Target window for Form 486 (Receipt of Services Confirmation) 

   

6/30/2024  Service Year ends 
 















Pending Adoption – August 8, 2022  

Public Forum Policy  

The Monon Town and Township Public Library Board of Trustees will conduct its meetings in 
compliance with the state Open Doors Law with board meetings open for public observation 
and recording. While not required by law to allow the public to speak at meetings, the board 
values the ideas and insights of constituents and will allow twenty (20) minutes of each board 
meeting for a public forum. 

Persons will be allowed to speak only if they have completed the attached request form and 
returned it to the director or a board member prior to the convening of the meeting. Each 
person will be allowed a maximum of two (2) minutes to address the board. The board 
president will call on those persons one at a time to stand and address the board for no more 
than the allocated time. 

The board will not respond at this meeting to questions, requests for information or requests 
for action. Appropriate response may be made at a later time after board members have 
sufficient opportunity to consider and deliberate on the issue. 

Constituents will not be allowed to comment during other portions of the board meeting unless 
comments are specifically requested by the board. Board members are always willing to hear 
from constituents outside the meeting, but meeting agendas are usually full and do not allow 
time for a continuous open forum. 

Send a completed request form to Director Austin Stroud or attention of any board member at 
PO Box 305, Monon, Indiana 47959, drop off at the library, or via 
email astroud@monon.lib.in.us  

 

Request to speak to the Monon Town and Township Public Library Board during the public 
forum.  

Name ______________________________________  

Today’s date__________________________  

Address ____________________________________________________________________  

Group/organization you represent, if any __________________________________________  

Subject about which you will speak _______________________________________________ 
 

https://jdcpl.rdpxl.co/wp-content/uploads/Policy-public-forum-JPL.pdf
https://jdcpl.rdpxl.co/wp-content/uploads/Policy-public-forum-JPL.pdf
mailto:astroud@monon.lib.in.us

	MeetingAgenda_8.8.22
	July 11, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes
	Claims&FinancialReports
	LibrariansReport_8.8.22
	Summer Reading Report 2022
	July2022CirculationStats
	Form1_ByUnit_R2013 (6)
	Timeline for Your Erate Year 2023
	Timeline for Your E-Rate Year 26
	(July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024)

	2023_2024Erate
	Public Forum Policy

